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The register begins with fol. 2, but a notation there indicates that the first two folios did not 

contain any acts from this notary.  Further, although the notation says there are 199 folios, the 

last one is in fact numbered 198, with a notation there suggesting that it is in fact the logical end 

of the present register.  There are a few dates earlier than 1564, probably items that were omitted 

in error from the missing first register of this notary. 

 

 

Fol. 2 

 

« Le Second registre reçuz et signé pour les actes en icelluy escriptz et minutes par moy 

soubsigné accommencé du troisiesme jour de Janvier l’an 1564… contenant 199 fullietz tous 

escriptz que les deux premieres, ainsy est par moy notaire. »  With signature and large and small 

paraphes of the notary. 

 

(Fol. 2v is blank.) 

 

Fol. 3 

 

Maistre Claude Farquettaz habitant de Payerne, estant esmeus d’aumour paternelle envers ladite 

Ellize sa fillie causant les arbillement (=habillements !) et trosselz par luy heu et retiré de ladicte 

feue Marie sa mere, assignal, 03 jan 1564. 

 

Fol. 3v 

 

Le devant nommé Maistre Claude Farquettaz with the approval of his daughter Ellize sells to 

Jehan Cousiney bourgeois dudict Payerne, same date. 

 

Fol. 4 

 

Pierre Joyoz sells to Claude Folliez bourgeois dudit Payerne, same date, with other provisions. 

 

Fol. 4v 

 

Jehan Veyron de Corselles sells to Noble Françoys Gachet, 06 jan 1564, wtih other provisions. 

 

Fol. 5 

 

Claude Ollevey bourgeois de Payerne sells to Pierre dy Waz (Vuaz) de Missie, 06 jan 1564, with 

other provisions. 
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Fol. 6   

 

Ledit Pierre du Vuaz sells to the said Claude Ollevey, cense, same date, with other provisions. 

 

Fol. 6v 

 

Jehan filz de feu Françoys Megoz perroche de Myousiez en Foucignie à present demourant en la 

ville de A Haysiney, testament, burial in the cemetery of the church in the parish where he shall 

die, universal heirs of all his property his sisters Jenon et Gervayse fillies dudit feuz Françoys 

Megoz indevises, 10 jan 1564, witnesses Claude Charbuens le jeusne et Jehan Guyniard le jeusne 

de Corselles. 

 

Fol. 7v 

 

Jehan Gryvat à present demourant à Russiez? (place name very uncertain), donation to Daniel 

Gryvat et ses frères, his brothers, ung curtil sis à Payerne en la Rue de Glatignie derrier la 

mayson dudit Daniel…, 14 jan 1564, withesses Noble Françoys Gachet et Vuillieme Oddet. 

 

Fol. 8 

 

Claude Michiel bourgeois de Payerne has received from Claude du Croux hoste de l’Ours de 

Payerne, 4 escus, « recharge » for prior sale, 16 jan 1564, witnesses George Maringod, Françoys 

Miville, et Oddet Perrin bourgeoys de Payerne, with other provisions. 

 

Fol. 9 

 

Claude Chappuys de Corselles sells to Claude Folliez bourgeoys de Payerne, 23 jan 1564, with 

other provisions. 

 

Fol. 9v 

 

Thibaud Blan de Russiez sells to Claude Folliez bourgeoys de Payerne, 23 jan 1564, with other 

provisions. 

 

Fol. 10 

 

Frantz Fögilli par cy devant mary de Noble Marguerite fillie de feu Noble Anna fillie de feu 

Noble Pierre Mestral tant comme tuteur et administrateur de mes enffans prins de ladicte feue ma 

femme, Daniel Montaignie de mon bon voulloir charge ayant et coadjucteur de Noble Catherine 

relicte de feu Noble Yost Zimmerman comme administratrice et gouvernery de Anna sa fillie et 

dudict noble Yost aussi du voulloir et consentement de ladicte sa mere, Francesya femme de 

Discret Nyclaus Fogili bourgeois de Frybourg, Margueret relicte de feuz Noble Niclaus 

Zimmerman comme administratrice et gouvernery par debvoir maternal de mes enffans prins 

dudict feu Noble Niclaus Zimmerman mon mary, et Janna fillie de ladicte Noble Anna et femme 

de honnorable Jacob Heymo (later in the text, the surname is written Aymo) bourgeoys de 

Frybourg, tous coheritiers de ladicte Noble Anna Mestraulx notre feue mere, division of their 



inheritance.  The individual parties who receive shares in this partage are :  (1)  Noble Frantz 

Föguilli comme tuteur et administrateur et au nom de sesdicts enfans; (2)  Discret Daniel de 

Montaignie au nom que dessus (see above, charge ayant et coadjucteur de Noble Catherine 

relicte de feu Noble Yost Zimmerman comme administratrice et gouvernery de Anna sa fillie et 

dudict noble Yost aussi du voulloir et consentement de ladicte sa mere) ; (3)  Franceysa femme 

de Noble Niclaus Föguilly ; (4)  hoirs dudict feu Nyclaus Zimmerman (see above, the heirs are 

his children, and they are represented by his widow Marguerite) ; and (5)  Janna femme dudict 

Jacob Aymo, 12 jan 1564.  There are many properties and names in this partage. 

 

Fol. 15v 

 

Anthoine Terraillion de Domppierre le Petit sells to Claude Folliez (Follie), 27 jan 1564, with 

other provisions, followed by another sale between the same parties, same date. 

 

Fol. 16v 

 

Bastian Rolinet de Domppierre le Petit sells to Pierre Jondroz (=Gindroz?) le jeusne de 

Domppierre le Petit, same date, with other provisions. 

 

Fol. 17 

 

Bernard filz de Jehan Fornerod de Dompdidiez sells to Pierre Jondroz (=Gindroz ?)  le fabvre de 

Domppierre le Petit, a reachept, same date. 

 

Fol. 17v 

 

Bernard filz de Jehan Fornerod de Dompdidier sells to Pierre Jondriouz (Jondriou) (=Gindroz ?) 

le jeusne de Domppierre le Petit, same date, with other provisions. 

 

Fol. 18 

 

Jacques Berset bourgeoys de Stavaye en mon propre nom accompagnié de Discret Claude Fywaz 

alias Iblet de Mengnyeres et de Claude Berset mon frere, and Jehan Amey Gachet et Claude 

Fywaz bourgeoys de Payerne traictant au nom de Ysabel Berthod fillie de feu Maistre Claude 

Berthod et Jacquettaz sa femme bourgeoys de Payerne, ladicte Ysabel presente et ladicte 

Jacquetta sa mere absente, nous faisans fort d’elle comme parens et oncles de ladicte Isabel, 

marriage, 04 may 1558, witnesses Nobles Jehan Amey Gachet, Claude Fywaz bourgeois dudict 

Payerne, et ledicte Glaud Berset, with other provisions. 

 

Fol. 19v 

 

Daniel Brossiez de Corselles bourgeoys de Payerne sells to Noble Françoys Gachet bourgeoys de 

Payerne, 28 jan 1564, with other provisions. 

 

 

 



Fol.20 

 

Noble Frantz (or possibly meant as an abbreviation for Françoys ?) Mestral donzel de Payerne, 

comme ainsi soit que Discret Ben[oit] Nyble secretayre et bourgeois de Payerne tant comme 

tuteur et gouverneur de Clauda, Magdellaine, et Rosaz fillies et heritieres de feu Noble Ben[oit] 

du Moullin holds property purchased from Jehan Conte de Corges bourgeoys de Payerne (and his 

brothers), on which a cense was owed to Mestral, now the said Mestral approves the sale, 28 jan 

1564. 

 

Fol. 20v 

 

Agnelly fille de feu _____ femme de Françoys Plumettaz bourgeois dudict Payerne, testament, 

universal heirs, nommement … (several lines left blank, evidently for the names of her children 

by … ) son premier mary, bequest for her current husband Françoys Plumettaz, but only after the 

death of her own mother, 05 feb 1564, witnesses Nicod Vijoz, Guilliaume Neyr, David Mottet, 

tous troys bourgeoys dudict Payerne, et Maistre Bernard de Duc apoticaire residant audict 

Payerne. 

 

Fol. 21v 

 

Claude Charbuens le jeusne de Corselles bourgeoys de Payerne sells to Morlet Zeuglyn ? 

bourgeoys de Murat represented by Claude Folliez bourgeoys de Payerne, property at Corcelles, 

18 feb 1564, with other provisions. 

 

Fol. 22 

 

Pierre Brouccoz le second l’aisné (i.e., the « second eldest » of at least 3 men of this name) de 

Corselles bourgeoys dudict Payerne, sells to Claude Folliez bourgeoys dudict Payerne, jouxte … 

la terre de Pierre Brouccoz l’aysné, 09 mar 1564, with other provisions. 

 

Fol. 23 

 

Pierre Brouccoz l’aysné de Corselles bourgeoys de Payerne sells to Claude Folliez, jouxte Pierre 

Brouccoz le second jeusne devers occident, et la terre de Pierre Brouccoz le tier jeusne devers 

orient, 09 feb 1564, with other provisions. 

 

Fol. 23v 

 

Nicod Cousiney bourgeoys de Payerne sells to Noble Françoys Gachet bouergeoys dudict 

Payerne, une pose de terre assise au territoire dudict Payerne au lieu dict dessoubz Corges du 

long de la terre de Jehan Cousiney son frere devers souleil couchant…, 02 mar 1564, with other 

provisions. 

 

 

 

 



Fol. 24 

 

Jehan Charbuens l’aisné de Corcelles sells to Jacques Gyvel bourgeoys de Payerne, 01 mar 1564, 

with other provisions. 

 

Fol. 24v 

 

George Maringod agissant d’une, et George filz de feu Jehan Maringod oncle et nepveux, et tous 

deux bourgeoys de Payerne, sur la joyssance naurance (=nourrance ?) et gouvernement que ledict 

George oncle a tenu et joy (=joui) de tout le temps passé jusques à la datte d’icestes que est 

survenu ledict George son nepveux et Susanne sa seur sont devenuz en perfection d’eage 

competant, et ce au mode et forme suyvant concernant sa part et pourtion à luy son nepveux et 

niepce appartenant comme heritiers dudict feu leur père au contenu du partaige entre ledict son 

oncle et père par avent faict que demeure en vigeur et force, assavoir que comme dict est de tous 

le passé ledict George le jeusne quicte perpetuellement ledict George son oncle pour luy et les 

siens moyennant bon et leal compte à luy de icelle tutelle rendu et conte donné ? il se tient pour 

bien content, en condiction (=condition) que doresnavant ledict George le jeusne puisse estre 

jouissant du poille dessoubz de la cuysine et de la moythié du certour au contenu de sondict 

partaige qu’est en la mayson desdicts partissantz sise icelle mayson en Payerne au lieudict en 

Plagniouz jouxte la mayson de Nycod Vijoz devers vent, la mayson de Françoys Myville devers 

bise, affronte sus la charriere devers orient et sus la ruette devers occident, entant qu’il doibge 

laysser jouissant ledict George son oncle du puorche d’icelle mayson pour son aller et venir, luy 

et les siens, soyt pour aller et venir en sa grange derrier ou au dessus ? sans contredict ny occux ? 

action quelconques, et pour recognaissance ? de tous agreables services et de sadicte tutelle 

ledict George le jeusne vend, cede, et remect perpetuellement pour luy et ses hoirs qudict George 

son oncle present pour luy et les siens, assavoir tel droict, part, et pourtion que ledicte George par 

son partaige a et peult avoir sur ung curtil sis en la Vy ou Fabvres jouxte le curtil de Noble 

Claude Fywaz devers orient, le jordil de Marguerite Fragny devers occident, affronte sus la 

charriere devers vent.  Item, sa part et pourtion d’ung reachept par ledict George l’heynné 

(=aîné) vendu d’une place sur le Mond (=Mont).  Item, aussi sa moythié d’ung jerdillier au 

lieudict ou Curtier à l’Hoste.  Item, aussi sa part et pourtion de la grange derrier ladicte Mayson, 

reservant à chescung d’iceulx de payer les censes directes pour les pieces que ungchescung 

tiendra, et les aultres censes reacheptaires par egalle pourtion, Entant que ledict Greorge le 

jeusne ne puisse ny ne doibge vendre, engaiger, ny alliener sondict bien quel qu’il soit sans 

sceuz, voulloir, et ratiffication dudict George son oncle et des siens, promectant etc., d’une part 

et d’aultre le tout avoir à gré sans jamais y contrevenir etc., renoncians etc., jurant etc., faict et 

donné avecq ses clausules le 01 mar 1564, witnesses Jehan Vouchy et Jacques Gyvel. 

 

Fol. 25v 

 

Pierre Perruz de Missiez sells to Noble Petterman Gachet bourgeoys dudict Payerne, property at 

Missiez, 03 mar 1564, with other provisions. 

 



Fol. 26 

 

Petterman filz d’Anthoine Savary bourgeoys de Payerne et Clauda sa mere relaissée de feu 

Glaude Guynard ? sell to Jacob Michiel bourgeoys et conseillier dudict Payerne, 08 mar 1564, 

witnesses Claude Vignion et Hanso Pradervan (clear), with other provisions. 

 

Fol. 26v 

 

Jehan Bonjour bourgeoys d’Avenche au nom et tant comme gouverneur et recepveur des deniers 

de l’hospital dudict Avenche et en icelluy nom, comme ainsi soit que Jacob Michiel conseillier et 

bourgeoys de Payerne tienne et possede par tiltre d’acquis par luy faict de _____, assavoir une 

pose de terre sise au territoyre de Sainct Aulbin…, now the said Bonjour ratifies the said 

transaction, 08 mar 1564. 

 

Maistre Françoys Bondin ? (or Boudin ?) residant à Payerne sells to Jehan Amey Gyvel 

bourgeoys de Payerne, 10 mar 1564. 

 

Fol. 27 

 

Pierre filz de feuz Glaude Brossiez de Corselles has received from his wife Colleta fillie de feu 

Pierre Brouccoz l’heynné 100 florins, dowry, assignal, 09 feb 1564, witnesses Jehan et Gabriel 

Mellie (=Melliez, Meyliez) freres thiolley (tile-makers) bourgeoys de Payerne. 

 

Fol. 27v 

 

Gonina femme de Jehan Grangie bourgeoys de Payerne, testament, bequests to Pierre son filz et 

dudict Jehan Grangie, to her 4 daughters, no more text, incomplete, no date. 

 

Fol. 28 

 

Maistres Pierre Tavel, Jehan et Daniel Tavel ses filz, partage (lists the household goods set aside 

for Daniel), agreement about the debts owed by the father, 23 sep 1563. 

 

Fol. 28v 

 

Jehan Berroux de Corselles bourgeoys dudict Payerne sells to Noble Françoys Gachet, 23 jan 

1564, with other provisions. 

 

Fol. 29 

 

Noble Françoys Mestral bourgeoys de Payerne, and Anthoine Mottet aussi bourgeoys dudict lieu, 

exchange, 13 mar 1564, with later notation dated 19 feb 1565, and another 06 mar 1565. 

 

 

 

 



Fol. 29v 

 

Franceysa fille de feu Nobles Petterman Zimmerman donzel et bourgeoys de Frybourg et de 

Noble Anna fillie de feu Noble Pierre Mestral, femme de Noble Discret Niclaus Fogeli 

bourgeoys de Frybourg, comme procureur et charge ayant qu’estant d’icelle receue et signée par 

Discret Daniel de Montaignie Landschryber de Frybourg et seellée du seaulx armoye de Noble 

Hans Heyd Advoye dudict lieu and dated 12 feb 1564, sells to Pierre Biolley bourgeoys de 

Payerne, property inherited from the said Anna Mestral, for 320 florins, 13 feb 1564. 

 

Fol. 32 

 

Francesa femme de Noble Nyclaus Fougilly sells to Noble George Mestral, same date. 

 

Fol. 32v 

 

Franceysa femme de Noble Nyclaus Fogily de Frybourg sells to Pierre Gryvat et Humbert 

Gorgeron bourgeoys de Payerne, same date. 

 

Fol. 33 

 

Franceysa femme de Noble Niclaus Fogili bourgeoys de Frybourg sells to Françoys Bossiez 

bourgeoys dudict Payerne, same date. 

 

Fol. 33v 

 

Noble Franceysa femme de Noble Nyclaus Fogili bourgeoys de Frybourg sells to Maistre Rod de 

Lochez chappuys habitant de Payerne, same date. 

 

Fol. 34 

 

Noble Franceysa femme de Noble Niclaus Fogili bourgeoys de Frybourg sells to Claude du 

Croux hoste de Payerne et Barbilly sa femme each for half, same date. 

 

Fol. 34v 

 

Noble Janna fillie de feu Nobles Petterman Zimmerman donzel et bourgeoys de Frybourg et de 

Noble Anna fillie de feu Noble Pierre Mestral femme de Discret Jacob Heimo (Heymo) 

bourgeoys de Fribourg sells to George Mestraulx Seigneur de Combremond le Petit, 13 feb 1564. 

 

Fol. 36 

 

Noble Jannaz Zimmerman femme de Discret Jacob Heimo bourgeoys de Frybourg sells to Noble 

Françoys Mestraulx donzel et bourgeoys de Payerne, same date. 

 

 

 



Fol. 36v 

 

Noble Jannaz femme de Discret Jacob Heimo bourgeoys de Frybourg sells to Jehan Vouchy 

bourgeoys de Payerne, same date. 

 

Fol. 37 

 

Noble Janna Zimmerman femme de Discret Jacob Heymo bourgeoys de Fribourg sells to Claude 

Folliez bourgeoys de Payerne, same date. 

 

Fol. 37v 

 

Noble Janna Zimmerman femme de Discret Jacob Heymo bourgeoys de Frybourg sells to 

Discret Benoict Nybloz secretayre et bourgeoys de Payerne, same date. 

 

Fol. 38 

 

Jannaz Zimmerman femme de Discret Jacob Heymo sells to Jehan Vuilliomet bourgeoys et 

conseillier de Payerne, same date. 

 

Fol. 38v 

 

Noble Janna Zimmerman femme de Discret Jacob Heymo bourgeoys de Frybourg sells to Jehan 

Vouchiz bourgeoys de Payerne, same date, with other provisions dated 14 feb 1564. 

 

Fol. 39 

 

Jannaz Zimmerman femme de Discret Jacob Heymoz bourgeoys de Frybourg sells to Loys 

Bollot bourgeoys dudict Payerne, same date (13 feb 1564), with other provisions dated 01 apr 

1564. 

 

Fol. 39v 

 

Noble Franctz Fogili comme tuteur et gouverneur de ses enfans pris de feue Noble Margret fillie 

de feu Noble Anna fillie de feu Noble Pierre Mestraulx en son vivant donzel et bourgeoys dudict 

Payerne sells to Jehan Amey Gyvel bourgeoys de Payerne, 21 feb 1564, with other provisions 

dated 04 apr 1568. 

 

Fol. 40v 

 

Noble Franctz Fogili tant comme tuteur et gouverneur par debvoir paternel de ses enfans prins de 

feue Noble Margret fillie de feu Noble Anna fillie de feu Noble Pierre Mestral en son vivant 

donzel et bourgeoys de Payerne d’une, et Noble Frantz Mestraulx donzel dudict Payerne d’aultre 

part, exchange, 03 feb 1564, with other provisions. 

 

 



Fol. 41v 

 

Noble Franctz Fögili tant comme tuteur et gouverneur de ses enffans prins de feue Noble 

Margret fillie de feue Noble Anna fillie de feu Pierre Mestraulx en son vivant donzel dudict 

Payerne sells to Noble Franctz Mestraulx donzel et bourgeoys de Payerne, same date. 

 

Fol. 42 

 

Noble Franctz Fogili tant comme tuteur et gouverneur de ses enffans prins de feue Noble 

Margret fillie de feue Noble Anna fillie de feu Noble Pierre Mestraulx en son vivant donzel et 

bourgeoys dudict Payerne et en icelluy nom sells to Noble Humbert de Foucigniez donzel et 

bourgeoys de Payerne, 21 feb 1564. 

 

Fol. 42v 

 

Noble Franctz Fogilly bourgeoys de Frybourg au [nom] de ses enffans comme dessus sells to 

Jehan Vuilliomet bourgeoys et conseilliers de Payerne, same date. 

 

Fol. 43 

 

Noble Franctz Fogili bourgeoys de Frybourg au nom de ses enffans comme dessus sells to Noble 

Humbert de Foucigniez, same date. 

 

Fol. 43v 

 

Noble Franctz Fogili bourgeoys de Frybourg au nom et tant comme tuteur et gouverneurs de ses 

enffans comme dessus sells to Noble Humbert de Foucigniez donzel et bourgeoys de Payerne, 

same date. 

 

Fol. 44 

 

Noble Franctz Fogili au nom et comme tuteur de ses enffans comme dessus sells to Hansman 

nourry de venerable messire Domp Jehan Chevrod absent mais Noble Françoys Gachet 

bourgeoys de Payerne comme gouverneur et charge ayant d’icelluy, same date. 

 

Fol. 44v 

 

Noble Franctz Fogili bourgeoys de Frybourg tant comme gouverneur de ses enffans prins de feue 

Noble Margret fillie de feue Noble Anna fillie de feu Noble Pierre Mestraulx en son vivant 

douzel et bourgeoys dudict Payerne sells to Saige et Savant Maistre Daniel de Mont ministre de 

la parolle de Dieu à Payerne, same date. 

 

Fol. 45 

 

Françoys Boudin (Bondin ?) cousturier de Payerne sells to Françoys Bersod (Bersoz) bourgeoys 

de Payerne, 08 mar 1564. 



Fol. 45v 

 

Anthoine Michiel tuteur et gouverneur de Glaude enfant pupille de feuz Claude Michiel et David 

filz aussi dudict feuz Claude Michiel aussi bourgeoys de Payerne sell to Jehan Vouthie 

bourgeoys et conseillier dudict Payerne, 27 feb 1564. 

 

Fol. 46v 

 

Anthoine Michiel tuteur et gouverneur de Glaude enffan pupille de feuz Claude Michiel, et 

David Michiel aussi son filz à son nom propre sell to Jehan Villarey bourgeoys de Payerne, same 

date. 

 

Fol. 47 

 

Anthoine Michiel tuteur de l’enfant pupille de feu Claude Michiel et David Michiel tous 

bourgeoys aussi dudict Payerne sell to Catherine relaissé[e] de feu Benoit Bosson en son vivant 

bourgeoys de Payerne tant comme tutrice et administratrice de ses enffans et dudict son mary, 

same date. 

 

Fol. 47v 

 

Anthoine Michiel au nom et tant comme tuteur et gouverneur de l’enffant pupille de Claude 

Michile et David filz dudict Claude Michiel sell to Noble Claude Fywaz bourgeoys et conseillier 

de Payerne, same date. 

 

Fol. 48 

 

Anthoine Michiel tant comme tuteur et gouverneur de Glaude enffant pupille de feuz Claude 

Michiel et David Michiel sells to Noble Claude Fywaz, same date. 

 

Fol. 48v 

 

Anthoine Michiel tuteur et gouverneur de Glaude l’anfant pupille de feuz Claude Michiel et 

David filz dudict feuz Claude Michiel aussi bourgeoys en son vivant de Payerne sells to Jehan 

Gyvel bourgeoys de Payerne, same date. 

 

Fol. 49 

 

Anthoine Michiel tuteur et gouverneur de Glaude enffan pupille de feuz Claude Mihchiel et en 

icelluy nom et David filz dudict feuz Claude Michiel sell to Catherine relaissée de feu Benoict 

Besson tant comme tutrice et administratrice de ses enffans et dudict feuz Benoict Besson et en 

icelluy nom, same date. 

 

 

 

 



Fol. 49v 

 

David filz de feu Claude Michiel de Payerne bourgeoys sells to Anthoine Michiel son oncle 

bourgeoys de Payerne, same date. 

 

Fol. 50 

 

Guilliaume Bovat de Sassel sells to Françoys Buttez de Granges, 15 mar 1564, with other 

provisions. 

 

Fol. 50v 

 

Pierre filz de feu Maistre Françoys Gryvat has received from Maistre Pierre Bougyvat ? son 

beaupere au nom de Pernon sa fillie et femme dudict confessant, 200 florins, dowry, assignal, 18 

mar 1564. 

 

Fol. 51 

 

Noble Françoys Mestraulx donzel et bourgeoys de Payerne sells to Françoys filz de Jehan Savary 

l’heynné des granges bourgeoys de Payerne, 13 feb 1564. 

 

Fol. 51v 

 

Pierre filz de feu Jehan Gavarret le jeusene, et Pierre Gavarret l’heynné de la Bretonneyrs 

bourgeoys de Payerne, settlement before Jehan Amey Gachet gentilhomme et Advoye de 

Payerne, Françoys Miville conseillier, Pierre Hereman aultrement Malliet bourgeoys dudict 

Payerne, et Jehan _____ Banderet de la Bruyere, arbitres, comme ainsi soit que dernierement 

ainsi qu’ilz estoyent à Middes voyant qu’il allienoit de son bien et qui fesoyt beaucoup de 

donnations à cestuy et à l’aultre, il luy fesoyt ses doleances, disant oncle je suys votre nepveux 

vous avez heuz beaucoup de biens de mon feu père pour vol pris, je vous pris qui voys playse 

m’en fayre remissive ce qu’il luy promyt les luy remectre sy accordant vollontairement, 

secondement luy promist le fayre son heritier, luy disant je ne feray jamais aultre que toy mon 

heritier et t’en veulx faire lettre d’avecq demande, ledicte acteur audict réé qu’il luy aye à 

remenctre lesdicts biens de sondict père et luys faire lettre comme il le faict son vray heritier 

jouxte sa promesse ou pour le reffuz de ce demandoit à luy estre adjugé passement jusques à 

mille escus d’or…, à quoy ledict Pierre Gavarret l’heynné réé grandement contredisoit, denegant 

ne luy avoir faict telle promesse qu’il s’en sceu se souvenir, disant que si l’avoyt cela promys 

s’estoit (=c’estoit) luy estant surprins de vin et plusieurs aultres parolles de part à part…, arbiters 

declare and order that Pierre the elder should turn over any such property to his nephew 

immediately, and that the nephew in turn should quitclaim to his uncle for what he receives, 06 

feb 1564. 

 

Fol. 53v 

 

Gedeon de Sinarclens bourgeoys de Payerne, promise for Jacob Plumettaz conseillier et 

burgeoys de Payerne, 27 mar 1564. 



Fol. 54 

 

Daniel de Montagnys (Montagnie) bourgeoys de Frybourg tant comme tuteur et gouverneur en 

plain conseil commis et deputé de Catherine relicte de feu Noble Jost Zimmerman en son vivant 

gentilhomme dudict Frybourg, elle comme gouvernerrys et charge ayant de Anna leur fillie 

constant de ladicte procure recehue par Frantz Gurnel secretayre duduict Frybourg seellée du 

seaulx armoys de Noble Hans Heyd moderne Advoye de ladicte ville 08 aug 1563, sells to Jehan 

Michiel l’aisné et Catherine relicte de feu Benoit Besson tous deux bourgeoys de Payerne, 26 

mar 1564. 

 

Fol. 55v 

 

Discret Daniel de Montagnie tuteur et procureur au nom que dessus sells to Claude Banquetta 

conseillier et bourgeoys de Payerne, same date. 

 

Fol. 56 

 

Le susnommé Claudy Bancquetta sells to the said Discret Daniel de Montagnie au nom que 

dessus, same date, with other provisions. 

 

Fol. 56v 

 

Discret Daniel de Montagnie gouverneur et tuteur susdict sells to Noble Humbert de Faucigniez 

bourgeoys de Payerne, same date. 

 

Fol. 57 

 

Ledict Noble Humbert de Faucigniez (Foucigniez) sells cense to Discret Daniel de Montaignie 

au nom susdict, same date, with other provisions. 

 

Fol. 58 

 

Discret Daniel de Montagnie au nom de ladicte Anna comme dessus sells to Noble Humbert de 

Faucigniez, same date. 

 

Fol. 58v 

 

Noble Humbert de Faucigniez sells to Discret Daniel de Montagnie au nom et tant comme tuteur 

et gouverneur de ladicte Anna et en icelluy nom, same date, with other provisions. 

 

Fol. 59 

 

Discret Daniel de Montagnie au nom et tant comme tuteur et gouverneur de ladicte Anna sells to 

Jehan Ruerat l’heynné de Corselles bourgeoys de Payerne, same date. 

 

 



Fol. 59v 

 

Ledict Jehan Ruerat l’heynné sells cense to ledict Daniel de Montagnie au nom que dessus, same 

date, with other provisions. 

 

Fol. 60 

 

Discret Daniel de Montagnye au nom et tant comme tuteur et gouverneur de ladicte Anna et en 

icelluy nom sells to Pierre Vothis bourgeoys de Payerne, same date. 

 

Fol. 60v 

 

Pierre Vothis bourgeoys de Payerne sells cense to Discret Daniel de Montagnie au nom et tant 

comme tuteur de ladicte Anna, same date, with other provisions. 

 

Fol. 61 

 

Discret Daniel de Montagnie au nom et comme tuteur de ladicte Anna sells to Noble Daniel 

Gachet bourgeoys de Payerne, same date, with other provisions. 

 

Fol. 61v 

 

Discret Daniel de Montagnie au nom et comme tuteur de ladicte Anna sells to Françoys Bossiez 

bourgeoys de Payerne, same date, with other provisions. 

 

Fol. 62v 

 

Claude filz de Pierre Savary bourgeoys de Payerne sells to Noble Françoys Gachet bourgeoys de 

Payerne, 04 apr 1564, with other provisions. 

 

Fol. 63 

 

Noble Benoict Fywaz bourgeoys de Payerne, testament, universal heir his unborn child by his 

wife Catherine, bequest to his nephew Françoys filz de feue Ysabel ma seur (the name of her 

husband, if that is what it is, is illegible), bequest to Françoys nourry de Françoys mon frère, 

bequest to the daughters of Claude Ollevey his neighbor, bequest to the charitable hospital of 

Payerne, 28 mar 1564, witnesses Maistre Françoys Bosson et Françoys Margueron bourgeoys 

dudict Payerne.  Notes in the margin suggest that the nephew in question was François Succanier 

(for whom a copy was made), and also that the child himself eventually died, and that as a result, 

a copy of this testament was prepared for Françoys Succanier cousin de ladicte feue heritier et 

expedié à George Maringod son tuteur et gouverneur. 

 

Fol. 64 

 

Claude Jacaud de Payerne sells to Noble Françoys Gachet boureoys de Payerne, 12 apr 1564, 

with other provisions. 



Fol. 64v 

 

Pierre Berroux de Corcelles boureoys de Payerne sells to Noble Françoys Gachet bourgeoys de 

Payerne, 13 apr 1564, with other provisions. 

 

Fol. 65 

 

Catherine femme de Steffe Gurnel bourgeoys de Payerne, and Claude Ollevey Ruerat l’heynné 

de Corcelles bourgeoys aussi dudict Payerne, exchange, 13 apr 1564, with other provisions. 

 

Fol. 66v 

 

Catherine femme de Steffe Gurnel and Jehan filz de Pierre Ruerat de Corcelles bourgeoys de 

Payerne, exchange, same date. 

 

Fol. 67 

 

Anthoine et Jost Phillin freres filz de feu Loys Phillin bourgeoys de Frybourg, partage, many 

properties, with large spaces left between the items, 17 apr 1564. 

 

Fol. 77 

 

Pierre Brouccoz l’heynné de Corselles bourgeoys de Payerne sells to Claude Vignion bourgeoys 

de Payerne, 16 apr 1564, with other provisions. 

 

Fol. 77v 

 

Claude nourry de feuz Domp Jehan Brossiez alias Mollard de Corselles et Glaude Charlet dudict 

lieu son beaufilz et Guygonna femme dudict Glaude Mollard sells to Noble Françoys Gachet 

bourgeoys de Payerne, 23 apr 1564, with other provisions. 

 

Fol. 78v 

 

Claude Vignion bourgeoys de Payerne sells to Noble Claude Fywaz bourgeoys et conseillier de 

Payerne, 20 apr 1564, with other provisions. 

 

Fol. 79 

 

Margret relicte de feu Noble Niclaus Zimmerman present femme de Claudi Ruerat moderne 

Banderet et bourgeoys de la ville de Payerne au nom et comme gouverneris et tutrice de ses 

enfans pris dudict feu son mary, et Discret Daniel de Montagnie Lanndtschryber et bourgeoys de 

Frybourg tant comme tuteur de Catherine relicte de feu Noble Jost Zimmerman et de Anna 

pupille fillie dudict Noble Jost et de ladicte Catherine sa mere, partage, 05 mar 1564. 

 

 

 



Fol. 80v 

 

Pierre filz de Nicod Savary bourgeoys de Payerne has received from Claudi Banquettaz 

conseillier et bourgeoys dudict Payerne 20 florins, recharge, mention transaction recorded by 

Abraham Chuard, 08 feb 1564, witnesses Jehan Gormoz et Maistre Jehan Rojoz hoste de la 

Cloche dudict Payerne. 

 

Maistre Pierre Banquetta filz de feu Jehan Banquetta holds mortgage ? for Pierre filz de Glaude 

Brossiez de Corselles bourgeoys dudict Payerne, now the said Maistre Pierre Banquetta cedes to 

Claude Banquetta the said lettre, same date. 

 

Fol. 81 

 

Maistre Pierre Banquettaz tenoit de gaige de Jehan Rojoz de Corselles bourgeoys de Payerne, 

instrument recehu par Discret Abraham Chuard 21 may 1561, now the said Pierre cedes to 

Claudi Banquettaz the said instrument, same date, with other provisions. 

 

Fol. 81v 

 

Daniel filz de Glaude Gryvat with approval of his mother Thorothée (=Dorothée) sells to Noble 

Françoys Gachet, 14 may 1564, with other provisions. 

 

Fol. 82 

 

Françoys filz de feu Jacquet Perrin has received “recharge” from Benoit Denye (Danyer) 

bourgeoys de Payerne, 07 may 1564. 

 

Jacob et Jehan Michiel frères bourgeoys de Payerne sell to Claude Jan alias Chuard de Cugie, 22 

may 1564. 

 

Fol. 83 

 

Claude Jan aultrement Chuard de Cugiez sells to Jacob et Jehan Michiel bourgeoys de Payerne, 

22 may 1564. 

 

Fol. 83v 

 

Pierre Bondu conseillier et bourgeoys de Payerne sells to Jacques Fabvre bourgeoys de Payerne, 

23 may 1564. 

 

Fol. 84v 

 

Anthoine Phillin et Jost Phillin freres tous deux filz de feuz Loys Phillin en son vivant bourgeoys 

de Frybourg, partage, 01 may 1564. 

 

 



Fol. 85v 

 

Pierre filz de Pierre Gavarret l’heynné, donation to Noble Jehan Amey Gachet, property he 

received in partage with his brother the late Jehan Gavarret, in return for 1800 florins, 27 may 

1564.  (Various conditions, in effect this “donation” is combined with provisions for Pierre’s 

succession?) 

 

Fol. 86v 

 

Pierre Francey de la grange de Coussset en la Seigneurie de Montagnye sells to Claude Folliez 

bourgeoys de Payerne, 27 may 1564, with other provisions. 

 

Fol. 87 

 

Blaise Challon donzel de Payerne sells to Hans (Hanns) Boumgartter bourgeoys de Berne 

moderne gouverneur de l’Abbaye de Payerne, 22 apr 1564, with other provisions. 

 

Fol. 88 

 

Noble Humbert de Faucigniez tant à son nom que de ses aultres freres sells to Marguerite relicte 

de feu Noble Nyclaus Zimmerman en son vivant bourgeoys de Frybourg à present femme de 

Claude Ruerat Banderet et bourgeoys de Payerne au nom et tant comme tutrice et gouvernerry 

par debvoir matternel de ses enffans pins dudict feu Noble Nyclaus Zimmerman et en icelluy 

nom, 19 may 1564, with other provisions. 

 

Fol. 88v 

 

Pauli filz de feu Jehan Baccon de Corselles bourgeoys de Payerne sells to Noble Françoys 

Gachet bourgeoys de Payerne, 02 jun 1564, with other provisions. 

 

Fol. 89v 

 

Noble Marguerite relicte de feu Noble Nyclaus Zimmerman tant comme tutrice et gouvernerry 

par debvoir maternel de ses enffans prins dudict feu Noble Nyclaus Zimmerman et en icelluy 

nom, femme à present de Claudy Ruerat moderne Banderet et conseillier de la ville de Payerne 

sells to Noble Humbert de Faucigniez tant à son nom que de ses aultres freres bourgeoys de 

Payerne, 19 may 1564. 

 

Fol. 91 

 

Loys filz de Jacquet Perrin bourgeoys de Payerne sells to Oddet Perrin bourgeoys et conseillier 

de Payerne, 06 jun 1564, with other provisions. 

 

 

 

 



Fol. 91v 

 

Daniel Bonjour bourgeoys d’Avenche, and Loysa fillie de feu Maistre Claude Berthod en son 

vivant bourgeoys de Payerne represented by Jehan Amey Gachet Advoye de Payerne, Françoys 

et Daniel Gachet freres, et Claude Fywaz donzel, bourgeoys, et conseillier dudict Payerne (Loysa 

is their niece), marriage, 11 jun 1564. 

 

Fol. 92v 

 

Catherine relicte de feu Pierre Brouccoz sells to Petterman filz de feu Pierre Brouccoz le jeusne 

de Corcelles, Petterman is a son of Catherine, 15 jun 1564, with other provisions (the property is 

leased back to Catherine for her lifetime only). 

 

Fol. 93 

 

Nobles Françoys, Jehan, et Claude Catellaz frères comme tuteurs et gouverneurs des enffans de 

feu Noble Loys Cathella leurs frère et pris et Noble Agnilliz fillie de feu Noble Jehan de Sainct 

Germain et Noble Jehan de Sainct Germain et Françoys de Myousiez pour leur part et à leur nom 

propre aussi gouverneurs conjoinctz de ladicte Agnili et de sesdicts enfans, sell to Jacob de Trey 

conseillier de Payerne tant à son nom que de ses consors, for 948 florins principal and 73 florins 

pour les vins du marchiez behuz etc., 15 apr 1564, witnesses Noble Jehan Amey Gachet Advoye, 

Françoys Ramuz, Jacques Chavanton, et Pierre Bondu conseilliers et bourgeoys dudict Payerne. 

 

Fol. 93v 

 

The same sellers sell to Jehan Vuilliomet bourgeoys et conseillier de Payerne, same date. 

 

Fol. 94 

 

The same sellers sell to Anthoine Michiez bourgeoys de Payerne, same date. 

 

Fol. 94v 

 

The same sellers sell to Christoffle Saulgey bourgeoys de Payerne, same date. 

 

The same sellers sell to Noble Jehan Gachet bourgeoys de Payerne, same date. 

 

Fol. 95 

 

Françoys Ramuz bourgeoys et conseillier de Payerne, testament, universal heirs his son Pierre 

Ramuz, non obstant la desobeissance et ingratitude d’iceluy et que à bonne et juste cause le 

pourroys expellir [et] dejecter de tous mesdicts biens, bequest for his wife Bernardina during her 

lifetime, 13 jun 1564, witnesses Noble Jehan Amey Gachet Advoye, Claude Ruerat Banderet, et 

Pierre Bondu Lieutenant tous troys conseilliers et bourgeoys dudict Paierne etc. 

 

 



Fol. 96 

 

Heritiers et heritieres de feu Maistre Claude Berthod et Jacquetta sa femme père et mere d’iceulx 

partissantz cy appres nommés, partaige :  The parties are, (1) Nous Christoffle Saulgey 

bourgeoys de Payerne tant comme tuteur et gouverneur en plain conseil commis et ordonné de 

Anna pupille fillie de feu Maistre Loys Berthod filz unicque du susnommé Claude Berthod et 

heritiere d’icelluy ; (2) Marguerite femme de Noble Bastian de la Pierra gentilhomme de 

Frybourg ; (3) Catherine femme de Françoys Boudin bourgeoys de Payerne ; (4) Barbilly femme 

de Henry Mehan bourgeoys dudict lieu ; (5) Isabel femme de Jacques Bergeret bourgeoys 

d’Estavaye à present habitant et barbier de Payerne ; et (6) Loysa Berthod tous filz et fillies des 

susnommés feuz Maistre Claude Berthod et Jacquetta leur père et mere, with advice and 

instruction of Nobles Jehan Amey, Françoys, Daniel, et Petterman Gachet freres, [et] Claude 

Fywaz nos oncles maternelz, et Pierre Bondu à ce conjoinct, mention testament of Jacquetta, 

division of property and funds, includes a house in Payerne adjacent to that of Maistre Jehan 

Rojoz hoste de Payerne that he purchased from Maistre Loys Perenon l’heynné, 07 mar 1564, 

and ratified by the council the next day.  (This document makes it clear that the deceased son 

Louis left only daughter Anna, and that Louise was the daughter of the late Claude, not of the 

late Louis.) 

 

Fol. 98 

 

Le susnommé Christoffel Saulgey au nom que dessus sells to Jacques Bergeret et Isabel sa 

femme coachepteurs, same date, ratified by the counsil 24 jun 1564 jour de feste St. Jehan, and a 

further payment schedule for this transaction on fol. 99. 

 

Fol. 99v 

 

Christoffle Saulgey comme tuteur et gouverneur au nom susdict etc., sells to Noble Françoys 

Crostel bourgeoys dudict Payerne, same date (=07 mar 1564), with other provisions (payment 

schedule). 

 

Fol. 100 

 

Daniel Baudin fils de Françoys Baudin (but in the text, Boudin) bourgeoys de Payerne, quitclaim 

to his father, assavoir la somme de 500 florins et l’environ de 100 florins oultre pour plusieurs 

constes (written ꝯstes) et missions par ledict son père par luy soubstenues et de ladicte somme 

par luy pour ledict Daniel Boudin envers Discret Benoict Nyble Secretayre et bourgeoys dudict 

Payerne comme tuteur et procureur de Nycod Savary frere maternel dudict Nyble allocasion (=à 

l’occasion) et pour l’emende d’une playe et vulneration indeubhmement par ledict Daniel faicte à 

la personne et main droict dudict Savary comme aussi pour la soufferte, interestz, et perdition de 

la main et cincq dois (=doigts) d’icelluy comme ledict Nyble contre ledict Daniel et ses biens au 

nom comme dessus avoit obtenu causant ce passement de plus grande somme et d’empuis par 

revisition et composition amyable … à 400 florins…  (in effect, this judgement against Daniel 

has been taken from Daniel’s share of his future inheritance or partage), 06 jun 1564, witnesses 

George Maringod, Jacob Michiel le jeusne, Christoffle Saulgey tous bourgeoys de Payerne, et 

Jacques Bergeret habitant dudict lieu. 



Fol. 101 

 

Jehan Plancherel de Corselles bourgeoys de Payerne cedes to Anthoine Phillin bourgeoys de 

Frybourg, a reachept granted by Loys Phillin, father of Anthoine, to Jehan Plancherel, father of 

the seller, 29 jun 1564. 

 

Nycod Cuysinier bourgeoys de Payerne sells to Noble Françoys Gachet, 31 aug 1564, witnesses 

Claude Vignon et George Maringod, with other provisions.  

 

Fol. 102 

 

Pierre Rappin l’heynné de Corcelles bourgeoys de Payerne sells to Noble Françoys Gachet, 02 

sep 1564, witnesses George Maringod et Glaude du Croux, with other provisions. 

 

Fol. 102v 

 

Jehan filz de feu Guilliaume Savary de Courcelles bourgeois de Payerne sells to Noble François 

Gachet donzel de Payerne, 12 sep 1564, witnesses Françoys Perrin et Jehan Pigniollet tous deux 

bourgeoys de Payerne, with other provisions. 

 

Fol. 103v 

 

François Gachet gentilhomme et bourgeois de Payerne agissant en ce au nom des hoirs de feu 

Nobles Benoict et Loys du Moulin bourgeois dudict Payerne, comme il soit que Discret Benoict 

Nible secretaire de la ville dudict Payerne tienne et possede en vertu d’achept pour luy faict de 

Benoict Rarra soubz grace de reachept, assavoir une pose de terre assise au territoire dudict 

Payernre au lieudict en Nerpra… et mouvante de la directe seigniorie desdictz hoirs desdicts feu 

Nobles du Moullin, previously recognized to the said feu Noble Benoict du Moullin by Jehan de 

Sinarclens, now the said François Gachet acting for the said heirs, approves the said sale, date 

left blank. 

 

Noble François Crostel donzel et bourgeois dudict Payerne sells to Noble François Gachet 

bourgeois de Payerne, 22 sep 1564, with other provisions. 

 

Fol. 104 

 

Bastian Gryvat bourgeois de Payerne has received from Nicod Givel bourgeois dudict Payerne 

au nom et proffit et à l’ayde d’Anna sa femme fillie dudict Nicod Givel 100 florins, dowry, 

assignal, 24 sep 1564. 

 

Jehan du Cry ? (dict le Foz) de Sainct Jehan Doz (=d’Aulps) à present demourant à Payerne, wife 

Antheynne fillie de feu Claude Reverchie, universal heirs Pierre de Lescrouy dudict lieu de 

Sainct Jehan Doz et ses aultres freres et seurs estantz dudict droict nom et surnom et rasse et de 

madicte generation unchescung d’iceulx par egalle portion pour la moytié de mondict bien, 

lesquelz sont mes cousins et cousines du costé pasternal, et Jehan filz de Rod Monner alias 



Porumbdot ? (perhaps Porumblot ?) et ses aultres freres et seurs ung chescung aussy d’iceulx par 

egalle portion pour l’aultre moytié, mes cousins et cousines du costé maternel, 24 sep 1564. 

 

Fol. 106 

 

Jenon fillie de feuz Jahen Vellet de Lustrie relicte de feu Pierre Maccagne ? present femme de 

Claude Brossie filz de feuz Pierre Brossie l’heynné de Corcelles bourgeois de Payerne sell to 

Henry Mehan bourgeoys de Payerne, 25 sep 1564, with other provisions. 

 

Fol. 107v 

 

Jehan Potz alias Grisod bourgeois de Payerne sells to Ysabel femme de Jehan Villarey dudict 

lieu, 30 sep 1564. 

 

Fol. 108 

 

Jehan Charbuens de Corcelles bourgeois de Payerne l’heynné sells to Jacques Givel bourgeois de 

Payerne, 12 oct 1564, with other provisions. 

 

Fol. 108v 

 

Hansso Rappin de Corcelles sells to Amey Rappin de Corcelles, 12 oct 1564. 

 

Clara relicte de feuz Discret Jehan Marquard, quitclaims to David et Jacob Marcuard (acting for 

their other brothers) for bequest of 200 florins from the estate of her father, 14 oct 1564.  The 

relationship of Clara to David and Jacob does not seem to be stated. 

 

Fol. 109 

 

Estievent Guyon with approval of François Besson son beaufrere sells to Phillippe Biolley, 21 

oct 1564, with other provisions. 

 

Fol. 109v 

 

Pierre du Ruz bourgeois de Payerne sells to Jehan Villarey bourgeois de Payerne, 23 oct 1564, 

with other provisions. 

 

Fol. 110 

 

Claude Vignon, Pierre Vignon, et Noel Vignon père et filz, partage, 25 oct 1564. 

 

Fol. 111 

 

Anthoine et Jehan Guynnard de Corselles bourgeoys de Payerne, partage, 10 nov 1564. 

 

 



Fol. 112 

 

Daniel Brossiez de Corselles bourgeois de Payerne sells to Jacques Chavanton conseillier et 

bourgeois de Payerne, 20 nov 1564, with other provisions. 

 

Fol. 112v 

 

Claude Ollevey Ruerard (=Ruerat) l’heynné et Nycod Brossiez toux deux de Corselles bourgeoys 

de Payerne arbitres, settlement between Amey Rappin dudict Corcelles tant comme procureur et 

à icelluy nom de Antheine Baccon, Jehan filz de feu Guilliaume Savary procureur de Franceysa 

sa belle seur et femme de Glaude Savary son frere, et Glaude Ollevey Ruerard le jeune comme 

personne conjoincte de Janna sa femme, et toutes seurs de feuz Noel Baccon tous de Corselles et 

bourgeois de Payerne acteurs d’une, et Claude Ruerard bourgeoys et conseillier dudict lieu tuteur 

et procureur et à icelluy nom de Isabel sa fillie et relicte dudict feuz Noel Baccon réé d’aultre 

part, regarding terms of Noel’s testament, 20 nov 1564. 

 

Fol. 114 

 

Pierre filz de feu Claude Brossiez de Corcelles principal et Jehan Rojoz dudict lieu sa fiance sell 

cense to George Chevrollat alias Chevrod bourgeois de Payerne, 15 dec 1564, with other 

provisions. 

 

Fol. 115 

 

Claude Baccon de Corselles bourgeois de Payerne sells to Pierre Fisican de Corselles bourgeoys 

de Payerne, 17 dec 1564, with other provisions. 

 

Fol. 115v 

 

Anthoine Moctet sells to Michiel Bovat tous deux bourgeoys de Payerne, 26 dec 1564, with 

other provisions. 

 

Fol. 116 

 

Claude Ruerat Banderet et Jehan Vothie tous deux bourgeoys et conseilliers dudict Payerne 

arbitres, settlement between Anthoine Jaulmignie d’Estrabloz agissant au nom de Glaude 

Jaulmigniez son filz par cy devant mary de feue Antheinne fillie de Claude Neyr d’une part, et 

ledict Claude Neyr, regarding marriage settlement, 15 dec 1564. 

 

Fol. 116v 

 

Franceysaz femme de Claude Savary, Jannaz femme de Claude Ollevey Ruerard le jeusne, et 

Amey Rappin fant comme tuteur et gouverneur de Antheynne fillies de feu Claude Baccon toutes 

troys seurs et coheritieres de feuz Noel Baccon leur frere, partage, many properties, 27 apr 1565. 

 

 



Fol. 121v 

 

Isabel femme de Jacques Bergeret barbier demourant à Payerne d’une, et Loyse femme de 

Daniel Bonjour d’Avenche, exchange, 12 dec 1564. 

 

Fol. 122 

 

Maistre Françoys Besson bourgeoys et maistre masson de Payerne has received from Pierre 

Bondu Lieutenant de Noble Jehan Amey Gachet Advoye de Payerne au nom et pour la part de 

nos tresredoubtés Seigneurs Messires de Berne, the following sums :  1 escu, 8 testons de 

Salleure (=Soleure), 4 testons de Roy (=du Roy de France), 2 testons de Berne, and 3 florins 6 

gros, monney that was given and entrusted by Clauda his late wife to her sister Loysa Guyon and 

since the death of the said Clauda adjudged to the said Françoys, assignal for the benefit of the 

heirs of Clauda, not named, 12 dec 1564. 

 

Fol. 122v 

 

Jehan filz de Bartholomey Jaulminier d’Estrabloz bourgeoys de Payerne sells to Oddet Perrin 

bourgeoys dudict Payerne, 06 jan 1565, with other provisions. 

 

Fol. 123 

 

Françoys filz de feu Jacquet Perrin sells to Françoys Myville, tous deux bourgeoys de Payerne, 

09 jan 1565. 

 

Fol. 123v 

 

Martin Cristina agissant au nom de Françoys son filz de Villard en Vuilliez, and Claude 

Jaulmignier d’Estrabloz agissant au nom de sa fillie (her name not give), marriage, mention that 

the bride has more than one sister, 18 jan 1565, witnesses Noble Jehan Amey Gachet et 

Petterman Gachet, Domp Jehan Cristinaz curé de Leschieles, Pierre Bondu, Anthoine Jominyer, 

et plusieurs aultres parens et amys desdictes parthies. 

 

Fol. 124 

 

Discret Daniel de Montagnie Landscryber de Frybourg tant comme tuteur et gouverneur de 

Noble Anna fillie pupille de feu Noble Jost Zimmerman en son vivant gentilhomme de Frybourg 

(procure recehue et signée par Frantz Gurnelz Secretayre dudict Frybourg, dated 08 aug 1563, 

and also approved by Jacob Garmiswil ancien Banderet de Frybourg et de Noble Catherine 

relicte dudit feu Noble Jost Zimmerman sa fillie et mere et administratrice de ladicte Anna 

pupille sa fillie) sells to Noble Jehan Mestral Seigneur de Combremond le Grand moderne 

Banderet de Payerne filz de feuz Noble Girard Mestral Seigneur de Combremond le Grand, une 

mayson…, sise en la ville de Payerne au lieu dict en Glatignie, laquelle fut par cy devant à feue 

Noble Anna fillie de feu Noble Pierre Mestral de dempuis devenue à ladicte Anna pupille par 

legitime succession de substitution testamentaire faict par ladicte feue sa mere grand, jouxte la 

mayson des Nobles Meyers de Frybourg devers la bise, le Ruz de Glatignie devers le vent, 



affronte sus la place et grange de Glauda Jacauld devers orient, et sus la charriere publicque 

devers occident, 2000 florins, 20 jan 1565, with other provisions. 

 

Fol. 125v 

 

Claude Ollevey Ruerat le jeusne de Corselles bourgeoys de Payerne sells to Jacques Chavanton, 

02 feb 1565, with other provisions. 

 

Fol. 126 

 

Michiel Bovat bourgeoys de Payerne sells to Jehan filz de Nicod (Nycod) Jaulmignier 

d’Estrabloz bourgeoys de Payerne, 04 feb 1565. 

 

Fol. 126v 

 

Françoys Perrin bourgeoys de Payerne et Anna fillie de feuz Jacques Vijoz du consentement 

l’ung de l’aultre, have received « recharge » from Benoict Denyez bourgeoys dudict lieu, 03 feb 

1565, with other provisions. 

 

Fol. 127 

 

Maistre Loys Bollot bourgeoys de Payerne, testament, universal heirs his sons (not named, a full 

line left blank for their names), bequest to his wife Phillippa, bequest of 5 florins to Jehan Mehan 

s’il revient au pays, bequest for Lorinse Cordey sa bien aymé … (word lined out?  it might have 

been seur) s’en demourerr l’espace d’ung an tant seullement en sa mayson et grange de Glaticnie 

sans aulcung sallaire, ensemble 10 florins d’argent pour elle et les siens par une foys…, 

approved by the said Phillippa and by Pernon la Marranna estant en leurdicte mayson, 12 dec 

1564. 

 

Fol. 128 

 

Jehan filz de Guilliaume Savary monnier de Corselles sells to Noble Françoys Gachet toux deux 

bourgeoys de Payerne, 29 jan 1565, with other provisions. 

 

Fol. 128v 

 

Guilliaume Bovat de Sassel sells to Michiel Bovat bourgeoys de Payerne, 08 ? feb 1565, with 

other provisions. 

 

Fol. 129 

 

Jehan Plancherel et Marguerite sa femme de Corcelles bourgeoys de Payerne sell to Benoit 

Saulge saulthier et bourgeoys de Payerne, 12 feb 1565, with other provisions. 

 

 

 



Fol. 130 

 

Phillippe Biolley et Pierre son filz l’heynné prins de feue Clauda Terrallion, partage, 14 feb 

1565. 

 

Fol. 130v 

 

Catherine femme de Maistre Françoys Bonduz ? sells to Christoffle Saugey tant comme tuteur et 

gouverneur de Anna pupille de feuz Maistre Loys Lechod et à icelluy nom, 19 ? feb 1565. 

 

Fol. 131 

 

Maistre Pierre Girard dict Bougyvat (clear) pavisiriez ? de Payerne sells to Agnex fillie de feu 

Glaude Chavanton femme de Pierre du Puy habitant de Payerne, 08 mar 1565. 

 

Fol. 131v 

 

Joffrey du Terraulx de Ruaz à present demourant à Wesmen ? pays d’Allemagne tant comme 

personne conjoincte de Collette seur d’Anthoine Thorumbert, comme puissance d’elle ayant 

constant de la puissance à luy ouctroyée par le conseil et communaulté de Frutingen dated 04 jun 

1555, quitclaims to the said Anthoine Thorumbert son beaufrere her claim on any inheritance 

they might receive, for 10 florins, 09 mar 1565. 

 

Fol. 132 

 

Henry Jan de Corselles bourgeoys de Payerne sells to Jacquette femme de Petterman filz de feu 

Jehan Gindroz de Montagnie la Ville, 12 mar 1565. 

 

Fol. 132v 

 

Françoys Margueron bourgeoys de Payerne cedes to Jehan Grangie cossandier de Payerne son 

beau frere, a debt against Jehan filz de feu Phillibert Savary bourgeoys dudict Payerne for 293 

florins (recorded by the same notary 07 jul 1562), 13 mar 1565. 

 

(Fol. 132v is followed without a break in the text by fol. 134.) 

 

Fol. 134 

 

Jehan et Pierre de Lescruy filz de feu Jehan de Lescruy de Sainct Jehan Doz (=d’Aulps) et Jehan 

et Pierre Monnyer aultrement Thorumbert dudict Sainct Jehan Doz tous tant à leurs noms que de 

leurs consors icy absentz tant du costé paternel que maternel comme heritiers de feu Jehan de 

Lescruy en son vivant demourant à Payerne aussi dudict Sainct Jehan Doz cousin germains 

desdicts vendeurs sell to Claude Banquetta bourgeoys et conseillier de Payerne, all the estate 

belonging to the late Jehan de Lescruy ? et à heulx par succession testamentaire devis (the 

testament recorded by the undersigned notary 24 sep 1564, also an inventory prepared by the 

undersigned dated 14 mar 1565), for 200 florins, et c’est en vertu d’une lettre judiciallement 



faicte actestatoire ? par devant Noble Jodocus de la Pierra Baillif du Pays de Valley, datté en la 

planes de Sainct Jehan Doz 07 mar 1565, mention Antheynne relicte dudict feu Jehan de Lescruy 

ussufructuaire dudict bien, 16 mar 1565, witnesses Discret Jehan Amey Proby, Françoys 

Myville, Benoit Saulge, Petter Saulthier, et George Dudan. 

 

Fol. 135 

 

Gedeon de Sinarclens à son nom que de Ellie son frere absent sells to Françoys Bossiez 

bourgeoys de Payerne, same date, with other provisions. 

 

Fol. 135v 

 

Michiel Savary au nom de Pierre son filz has received for the dowry of his wife Antheyne from 

Anthoine et Pierre filz de feuz Guilliaume Perrin her brother (text not very clear), 60 florins, 

assignal, 18 mar 1565. 

 

Fol. 136 

 

Maystre Pierre Bougivat sells to Maystre Françoys Boudin, 19 mar 1565, with other provisions. 

 

Fol. 136v 

 

Jacques Vuilliemin de Domppierre le Petit sells to Noble Françoys Gachet, 22 mar 1565, with 

other provisions. 

 

Fol. 137 

 

Daniel Bonjour bourgeoys d’Avenche et Loysa sa femme fillie de feuz Maystre Claude Berthod 

sell to Noble Humbert de Foucdignie et ses freres (not named), 25 feb 1565. 

 

Fol. 137v 

 

George Maringod tucteur de Françoys Succanie and with approval of his father Anthoine 

Succanie usfructuayre (see fol. 140v, where Anthoine is the usufructuaire of his late wife Isabel 

fillie de feu Noble Jehan Fywaz) sells to Claudy Banquette, 08 mar 1565, with other provisions, 

and the property is leased for cultivation to Jehan Beroux le aveugle de Corcelles bourgeoys de 

Payerne. 

 

Fol. 138 

 

Françoys Contoz de Corges bourgeoys de Payerne sells to Claude Vignon bourgeois de Payerne, 

01 dec 1564, with other provisions. 

 

 

 

 



Fol. 138v 

 

Jacques Fabvre de Payerne ? sells at auction to Jehan Pilliard bourgeoys de Payerne, 25 mar 

1565, with other provisions. 

 

Fol. 139v 

 

Noble Petterman d’Englisperg gentilhomme et bourgeoys de Payerne, donation to Jehan 

d’Englisperg son nourry oultre son testament faict, 25 feb 1565. 

 

Fol. 140v 

 

Jehan Berroux de Corselles bourgeoys de Payerne sells to Noble Françoys Gachet bourgeoys de 

Payerne, 06 apr 1565, with other provisions. 

 

Fol. 141 

 

Claude Verdon de Domppierre le Petit sells to Claude Follie bourgeois de Payerne, 24 apr 1565, 

with other provisions. 

 

Fol. 141v 

 

Pierre Jan le jeune de Corselles bourgeoys de Payerne sells to Anna relicte de feu Discret Jehan 

Savary en son vivant notayre et bourgeoys de Payerne, 27 apr 1565, with other provisions. 

 

Fol. 142 

 

Pierre filz de feu Françoys Lambert bourgeoys d’Estavaye, comme ainsi soit que par cy devant 

causant baissance ? et innabitation de son lieu aye par cy devant constitué faicte et ordonné son 

vray et indubitatiff procureur special et general, le tout au contenue de ladicte procure recehue et 

signée par Discret David Marcuard bourgeoys dudict lieu dated 21 feb 1563, et s’estoit 

(=c’estoit) pour pouvoir et debvoir demander exigir et retirer tous et ungchescun son bien soit en 

meuble ou immeuble tel que à luy pourroit appartenir fut [à] Estavaye et sa jurisdiction que 

aultre part quel qu’il fut, luy auant aussi donné puissance de vendre et alliener sesdicts biens et 

iceulx reduire au profit dudict constituant, doncq sur ce ledit procureur auroit faire trier vendaux 

audict Estavaye desqueulx meubles come aussi du residu de sadicte tutelle et procure, ledict son 

tuteur constitué luy en a rendu et faict sa bon conte soit en deliverance pour ledict constituant 

comme aussi d’argent à sa faveur et a luy mesme delivré ans d’icelluy s’en tient pour bien 

content et de ladicte tutelle et ses appendances, les quicte perpetuelle luy et les siens comme bien 

content, 08 may 1565. 

 

Fol. 142v 

 

Pierre filz de feu Françoys Lambert bourgeoys d’Estavaye sells to Jacques Bergeret, 09 may 

1565. 

 



Fol. 143 

 

Jacques Vuilliomet bourgeoys de Payerne, with approval of his other brothers and relatives and 

friends, and Claude Ruerat bourgeoys et conseillier dudict lieu traictant au nom et pour la part de 

Isabel ma fillie relicte de feu Noel Baccon de Corselles, marriage, 12 apr 1565. 

 

Fol. 143v 

 

Jehan Gillian de Sassel has received « recharge » from Discret Pierre Fywaz, 08 may 1565. 

 

Fol. 144 

 

Pierre filz de feu Françoys Lambert bourgeoys d’Estavaye, donation to Jacques Bergeret barbier 

de Payerne, une mayson ensemble la place et appartenance d’icelle sise en la ville d’Estavaye au 

lieudict ou Bourd jouxte la mayson de Noble Christoffle du Moullin devers orient, la mayson de 

Vuillieme de Vivey devers occident, affronte sus la charriere devers bise, et sus certain place 

derrier devers vent, 20 escus, 10 may 1565. 

 

Fol. 144v 

 

Michiel Bovat sells to Noble Françoys Gachet, 11 may 1565, with other provisions. 

 

Fol. 145 

 

Jehan Amey Gachet Advoye, Pierre Bondu lieutenant, et moy notaire, settlement of dispute 

between Pierre Gavarret l’heynné and Pierre Gavarret le jeune, property rights, 29 apr 1565. 

 

Fol. 146 

 

Loys Chapuis de Combes ? bourgeoys de Payerne sells to Nicod Vijoz bourgeoys de Payerne, 23 

may 1565. 

 

Claude Jaccaud bourgeoys de Payerne sells to Jehan Vothie conseillier dudict lieu, 20 may 1565. 

 

Fol. 146v 

 

Noble Françoys Mestral sells to Maystre Moris Fillioux serrurier de Payerne, 22 may 1565. 

 

Fol. 147 

 

Noble Frantz Mestral sells to Oddet Perrin, 23 may 1565. 

 

Pierre, Jacob, et Françoys Fillion filz de feu Glaude Fillion bourgeoys de Payerne have received 

and divided a certain sum from the marriage of their mother among their three unmarried sisters 

Clauda, Catherine, et Jenon fillies de feu Glaude Fillion, assignal, their mother was Antheynne, 

25 may 1565. 



Fol. 148 

 

Michiel Savary sells to Claude Banquetta, 25 may 1565, with other provisions. 

 

Fol. 148v 

 

Claude nourry de Henry Jan, et Pierre Fisican d’aultre, tous de Corselles bourgeoys de Payerne, 

exchange, 31 may 1565. 

 

Fol. 149 

 

Jehan Brossiez sells to Claude Brossiez filz de Pierre Brossie dict l’Alaman, 01 jun 1565, with 

other provisions. 

 

Fol. 149v 

 

Pierre filz de Marmet Vuilliemin de Domppierre le Petit sells to Claude Follie bourgeoys de 

Payerne, 11 may 1565, with other provisions. 

 

Fol. 150 

 

Claude Vuilliermin de Corselles bourgeoys de Payerne sells to Noble Françoys Gachet, 02 jul 

1565, with other provisions. 

 

Fol. 150v 

 

Claude filz de Pierre Brossie sells to Barbilly femme de Claude du Croux habitant de Payerne, 

20 jul 1565, with other provisions. 

 

Fol. 151v 

 

Françoys filz de feuz Maystre Anthoine Succanie bourgeoys de Payerne, assisted by his father, 

testament, property has come to him from the death of his cousin Anna daughter of his maternal 

uncle the late Noble Benoit ? Fywaz, and he wishes to travel here and there for his education, 

universal heir his father, 17 jul 1565.  Marginal notation:  Le 15 de May 1568 le present 

testament a esté cancellé soyt par le commandement dudict testateur. 

 

Fol. 152 

 

Moy Benoict de Miville (Myville) notayre soubsigné sells to Anne relicte de feuz Jehan de 

Sarsens de Corcelles bourgeois de Payerne, 19 aug 1565. 

 

Fol. 152v 

 

Guilliaume Neir d’Establoz, and Jacquema relaixée de feuz Maystre Loys Coullin ? en son 

vivant habitant de Payerne, marriage, 19 aug 1565, with assignal. 



Fol. 153v 

 

Glaude Vuilliermin de Corselles sells to Noble Françoys Gachet, 28 aug 1565, with other 

provisions. 

 

Fol. 154 

 

Hanss Ru ffly dit Reyfer de Domppierre le Petit sells to Noble Claudy Fywaz conseillier de 

Payerne, 20 jul 1565, with other provisions. 

 

Fol. 154v 

 

Claude Ollevey Ruerard le jeune de Corcelles bourgeois de Payerne has received from hsi wife 

Jehanna Baccon 180 florins, dowry to her constituted by the late Noel Bacon her brother, 

assignal, and 160 florins from the division with her sisters Franceysa and Antheyne from the 

succession of their said brother, 23 jul 1565, with other provisions. 

 

Fol. 155 

 

Clauda femme de Rollet ? Michiel de Montagny, donation to her nephew Claude filz de Pierre 

Savary des granges de Mond (=Mont) bourgeoys de Payerne, all claim on the succession of the 

late Pierre Savary le jeune her brother, 24 may 1565. 

 

Aymo Bovey de Vivey ? has received from Clauda fillie de feuz Jehan Savary notaire et 

bourgeois de Payerne, 83 florins 4 gros, the remainder of her dowry, assignal, 04 jul 1565. 

 

Fol. 155v 

 

Anthoine Reverchier relicte de feuz Jehan de Lescruy en son vivant demourant à Payerne, 

testament, frappée et detenue de malladie contagieuse de peste, testament, universal heirs the 

children of Jehan Groz and Anthoine Reverchie her niece, bequest to Petter Southy, to the 

daughters of Jehan Blan de Fribourg her nieces, to Ester Genacoulla, to the heirs of Jacob 

Genacoulla, to Françoys filz de Pierre Ramuz, to her servant Clauda, to Michiel Gromard her 

nephew, to Clauda daughter of Pierre Ramuz, to _____ her sister, married at Le Landeron, 18 jul 

1565, witnesses Jehanna Ramuz et Pernon la Marmonna.  (See fol. 164, where the names of the 

sister and her husband living at Le Landeron are revealed.) 

 

Fol. 156v 

 

Nobles Jehan Amey et Petterman Gachet, and Jehan filz de feuz Pierre Charbuens de Missiez, 

exchange, mention of a previous transaction of 20 aug 1439 recorded by Discret Jehan Gummens 

notayre dudict Payerne, which included a reachept conceded to the late Nycod Charbuens 

peregrand dudict eschangeur by the late Richard filz de feu Nycod de la Court, which Charbuens 

now trades to the Gachet for other considerations, 06 aug 1565. 

 

 



 

Fol. 157v 

 

Daniel Brossiez de Corcelles bourgeoys de Payerne sells to Noble Françoys Gachet, 03 oct 1565, 

with other provisions. 

 

Fol. 158v 

 

Jehan et Pierre Lescruy filz de feu Jehan de Lescruy de Ville Nouve ? parroche de Sainct Jehan 

Doz (=Saint-Jean-d’Aulps, Haute-Savoie) sells to Claude Banquetta, par cy devant Jehan et 

Pierre sold to Claude Banquetta conseillier de Payerne, joinct en ladicte vendition nos consors et 

avecq nous coheritiers, en la succession et heritaige à nous par egalle pourtion devenu et contenu 

en icelle vendition par l’obit et trespas de feu Jehan Lescruy filz de feu Jehannet Lescruy 

parroche de Morsina … ? (=Morzine, a commune in the Haute-Savoie), assavoir le bien et 

heritaire gesant en la ville de Payerne et illecq allentour, recorded by the undersigned notary 16 

mar 1565, further provisions, mention Noble Jodocus de la Pierra gouverneur moderne dudict 

Valley, in a document recorded by Pierre Perron le jeusne a notary of that place dated 21 mar, 

1565, now they sell to Banquetta other rights from the succession of the said Jehan Lescruy their 

cousin, including those in the Seigneurie of Frybourg, now part of the usufruct of Antheyne, 

widow of the said Jehan Lescruy, 23 sep 1565, with additional marginal notations. 

 

Fol. 159v 

 

Hansso Grisod l’heyné bourgeois de Payerne, testament, universal heirs Ysabel his daughter, 

excluding his other sons and daughters, who have already received their shares in their marriage 

settlements, 04 oct 1565. 

 

Fol. 160v 

 

_____ fille de feuz Jehan Doudin l’heynné, estant mallade et oppressée de peste, universal heirs 

_____ (no more text, left blank, no date). 

 

Jehan Grisod, donation entre les viffz faicte pour Ysabel Grisod his daughter, same date (=04 oct 

1565). 

 

Fol. 161 

 

Noble François filz de feu Noble Gerard Mestral bourgeois de Payerne et Noble Gabriel filz de 

Noble Aymoz de Pré conseigneur de Corcelles, de Corsier, etc., bourgeoys de Lustrier, 

settlement, Mestral had demanded « emende » and recompense de la playe et vullneration à luy 

faycte comme il allegnoit indefhuement tant par ledict noble réé que par auldungs de ses freres et 

aultres coadjuteurs comme de tout plus amplement est contenus et declairés es procès sur ce 

faictz, fine of 120 escus, of which 100 are for pain and suffering and the remaining 20 for 

expenses, 25 oct 1565. 

 

 



 

Fol. 162v 

 

Jehan filz de feu Guygoz Chappuys bourgeoys de Payerne à present demourant à Wiettlispacht 

sells to Noble Françoys Gachet, a reachept for property at Montagney, 27 oct 1565. 

 

Fol. 163 

 

Le susdict Jehan Chappuys bourgeoys dudict Paierne à present demourant à Viettlispacht sells to 

Glaude filz  nurry d’Henry Jan de Corcelles bourgeoys de Payerne, 27 oct 1565. 

 

Fol. 164 

 

Glaudi Banquette bourgeoys de Payerne, tant comment achepteur et tiltre ayant des hoirs de feu 

Jehan de Lescruyz de Sainct Jehan d’Aoulx en son vivant demourant audict Payerne heritiers 

d’icelluy et mary par cy devant de Anthoine Reverchiez seur de Genon femme de Pierre Seguin 

(Seguyn) bourgeoys du Landeron, quitclaims to the said Seguyn, 29 oct 1565. 

 

Fol. 164v 

 

Gerard Gryvat bourgeoys de Payerne sells to Jaques Chavanton bourgeoys de Payerne, 01 nov 

1565, with other provisions. 

 

Fol. 165 

 

Claudy Banquette tiltre ayant des hoirs de feuz Jehan de Lescruy par achet d’iceulx hoirs par luy 

faict, cession to Françoys Muffat habitant de Payerne, 07 nov 1565, with other provisions. 

 

Fol. 166 

 

Jehan Compien ? bourgeoys de Payerne sells to Jacques Chavanton bourgeoys de Payerne, 09 

nov 1565, with other provisions. 

 

Fol. 166v 

 

Pierre Jan le jeunne de Corselles bourgeoys de Payerne sells to Glaudy (Claudy) Banquette, 12 

nov 1565, with other provisions. 

 

Fol. 167 

 

Jehan Vuilliomet conseillier de Payerne tant comment tuteur et gouverneur des enfans et biens de 

feu Discret Jehan Savary en son vivant notaire et conseillier de Payerne sells par esdict et 

discution publicque to Pierre filz de Nycod Savary, in order to pay the debts of the estate, 25 mar 

1565. 

 

 



Fol. 169v 

 

Le devant nommé Jehan Vuilliomet au nom et forme de la precedante, sells to Anthoine Michel 

bourgeoys de Payerne, same date. 

 

Le susnommé Anthoine Michel cedes to Jehan Textor, the preceding assets, 11 jun 1565, 

witnesses George Maringod et Françoys Miville. 

 

Fol. 170 

 

Le prenommé Jehan Vuilliomet au nom et form des precedentes sells to Egrege Benoict Myeville 

notayre et bourgeoys de Payerne, same date. 

 

Fol. 170v 

 

Le prenommé Jehan Vuilliomet etc. sells to Jehan Textor docteur en medicines residant à 

Payerne, same date. 

 

Fol. 171 

 

Le devant nommé Jehan Vuilliomet tuteur et gouverneur desdictz enfans aux precedentes 

contenus sells to Jaques Vuilliomet bourgeoys de Payerne, same date. 

 

Fol. 171v 

 

Jehan Amey Gachet Advoyer de Payerne au nom et pour la part de noz tresredoubtez Seigneurs 

et puissantz princes messires de Berne, ainsin soyt que par cy devant Maistre Loys Perenoulx 

(=Perrenon) l’heyné en son vivant bourgeoys de Payerne died, leaving debts, as a result of which 

some of his property fell to the government of Berne, now purchased by Françoys Bersod 

bourgeoys de Payerne, 06 feb 1565. 

 

Fol. 172v 

 

Jehan Amey Gachet etc. (as in the preceding item) sells to Noble Daniel Gachet bourgeoys de 

Payerne, same date. 

 

Fol. 173 

 

Jehan Michel bourgeoys de Payenre tant comme tuteur et gouverneur des enfans de feu Jehan 

Doudin l’heynné sells par esdict et discution publicque to Discret Abraham Chuard, 28 jun 1565. 

 

Fol. 174v 

 

Jehan Michel tuteur etc. (as in the preceding item) sells to Pierre Vignyon, same date. 

 

 



Fol. 175 

 

Jehan Michel tuteur etc. (as in the preceding items) sells to Pierre Biolley bourgeoys de Payerne, 

same date. 

 

Fol. 175v 

 

Ledict Jehan Michel tuteur predict sells to Jehan et Daniel Chastillion frères bourgeoys de 

Payerne, same date. 

 

Fol. 176 

 

Le susnommé Jehan Michel etc. sells to Anthoine Michel, same date. 

 

Fol. 176v 

 

Pierre Grivat filz de feu Françoys Grivat bourgeoys de Payerne with approval of Jaques Grivat 

tuteur et gouverneur of the said seller and of Pierre Myville superentendant dudict Pierre sell to 

Claude Ducettaz de Corselles bourgeoys de Payerne, same date. 

 

(Fol. 177v is blank.) 

 

Fol. 178 

 

Loys filz de feu Mermet Vuilliermin de Corselles bourgeoys de Payerne accompanied by his 

brother Claude, and Jaques Prellaz dudict Russiez tractant au nom et comme tuteur et gouverneur 

de Annaz fillie de feu Glaude du Mont de Russiez, marriage, 18 nov 1565, with other provisions. 

 

Fol. 179 

 

Claude Ollevey Ruerad le jeusne de Corselles sells to Glaude Jan nourry de Henry Jan de 

Corselles, 26 nov 1565, with other provisions. 

 

Fol. 179v 

 

Pierre Rollinet alias Dissy de Yssys filz de Jaques Rollinet de Issy sells to Claude Follie, 26 nov 

1565, with other provisions. 

 

Fol. 180 

 

Phillibert filz de feu Jaquet Ruerad de Corselles bourgeoys de Payerne sells to Claude Follie, 28 

nov 1565, with other provisions. 

 

 

 

 



Fol. 181 

 

Claude Vuilliermin de Corcelles bourgeois de Payerne sells to Noble Françoys Gachet, 29 nov 

1565, witnesses George Maringod et Claude Ollivey, with other provisions. 

 

Fol. 181v 

 

Claudaz femme d’Anthoine Suavet d’Estrabloz sells to Guilliaume filz de feu Jehan Neyr 

d’Estrabloz bourgeoys de Payerne, same date. 

 

Fol. 182 

 

Pierre Gueynnard filz de feu Glaude Gueynnard de Corselles sells to Claude nourry d’Henry Jan, 

03 dec 1565, with other provisions. 

 

Fol. 183 

 

Estienne Marguerat de Belmont sus Lustryer ballifvaige de Lausanne agissant au nom de Loysaz 

Chastillion fillie de feu Hannssman Chastillion bourgeoys de Payerne sa femme (procure faicte 

et recehue par le notayre soubsigné du jour et datte d’icelle) acteur, et Jehan et Daniel Chastillion 

freres de ladicte Loysaz bourgeoys de Payerne réés d’aultre, dispute, pour la repetition et 

restitution de la somme pecunyaire advenant à la somme de 417 florins 6 gros par iceulx recehue 

de Noble Aymé de Pré au nom de François de Pré son filz pour la part de leurdicte seur par 

sentence deffuntoyre par iceulx obtenues contre ledict de Pré par devant la grace de nosdictz 

tresredoubtés Seigneurs de Berne, est en icelles contenus et ordonné pour la deffloration d’elle 

heue dudict Noble Françoys de Pré, assavoir la somme de 200 florins, et le surplus desdictz 417 

florins 6 gros esdictz réés delaissé et congneuz tant en recompense de leur faiys peynnes et 

labeurs…, and they seek a partage of all the maternal estate coming to the said Loysaz as well as 

her paternal inheritance and marriage settlement, arbiters order settlement of 300 florins for the 

« deffloration » etc., 08 dec 1565. 

 

Fol. 184v 

 

Jehan filz de feu Guilliaume Savary tant comme tutteur de Colletta (Collettaz) Broucoz relaixée 

de feu Pierre Brossiez, and Amey Rappin tutteur et gouverneur des hoirs dudict feu Pierre 

Brossiez, settlement,  13 dec 1565. 

 

Fol. 186 

 

Pierre Garys (=Gary) le jeune et Benoict Gryvat tous deux bourgeoys de Payerne, exchange, 18 

dec 1565, with other provisions. 

 

 

 

 

 



Fol. 187 

 

Daniel Bonjour bourgeoys d’Avenche has received from wife Loysaz fillie de feu Mestre Glaude 

Berthod en son vivant bourgeois de Payerne represented by Noble Daniel Gachet and her 

brothers-in-law, 550 florins, dowry, assignal, 23 dec 1565. 

 

Fol. 187v 

 

Henry Guynnard de Corcelles tant comme tucteur et procureur des hoirs de feuz Claude 

Guynnard son frere sells to Claude Jaquet Jhan (=Jan or Jam) de Corcelles tous deux bourgeois 

de Payerne, 23 dec 1565. 

 

Fol. 188 

 

Ledict Heynrie ? (=Henry Guynnard) au nom que dessus sells to Amey Rappin conseillier de 

Payerne, same date. 

 

Fol. 188v 

 

Ledict Henri au nom que dessus sells to Pierre Jhan le jeune dudict Corcelles, same date. 

 

Fol. 189 

 

Ledict Henry Guynnard sells to Claude Baccon dudict lieu, same date. 

 

Fol. 189v 

 

Le susnommé Henry Guynnard au nom que dessus sells to _____ (name left blank wherever it 

occurs), same date. 

 

Le susnommé Henry Guynnard au nom que dessus sells to Claude nourry de Henry Jhan, same 

date. 

 

Fol. 190 

 

Colletta (Collette) fillie de Vuillieme Botteron de Marnan, donation to her aunt Jenon relaixée de 

feuz Nicod Grivat, 28 dec 1565. 

 

Fol. 190v 

 

Pierre Gary le jeune et Benoict Crousaz tous deux bourgeois de Payerne, exchange, 01 jan 1566, 

with marginal notations. 

 

 

 

 



Fol. 191v 

 

Jehan Deschoz (de Choz) filz de feuz Claude de Choz à present demourant en la Seigneurie de 

Hinny ? (=Henniez ?) quitclaims to Noel Lhostez ? son beau frere au nom de Antoina ? sa 

femme et seur dudict quictateur ? for her partage, 02 jan 1566. 

 

Fol. 192v 

 

Daniel Pilliard et Anthoinoz Genacoullaz tous deux bourgeois de Payerne, exchange, 02 jan 

1566, with other provisions. 

 

Jehan Rojoz de Corcelles bourgeois de Payerne sells to François Jaunin (Jonin) chapuis de 

Payerne, 30 dec 1565. 

 

Fol. 193v 

 

Michel Bovat bourgeois et conseillier de Payerne sels to Caspar filz de Claude Chappuys de 

Corcelles bourgeois de Payerne, 30 dec 1565. 

 

Fol. 194v 

 

Pierre Escuyer de Estrabloz bourgeoys de Payerne sells to Noble François Gachet, 07 jan 1566. 

with other provisions. 

 

Fol. 195 

 

Jehan Doudin bourgeois de Payerne sells to Pierre Biolley bourgeoys de Payerne, 06 jan 1566. 

 

Fol. 195v 

 

(In a different hand, no signature or paraphe)  Noble François Gachet procureur general de 

Katherine relaixée de feu Noble Benoit Fyvvaz en son vivant conesillier de Payerne absent, 

Jaques Vuilliermet procureur d’icelluy soubstitué et en presence de la susnommée Katherine 

principal acteur d’une, et Discret Daniel Nycod alias Arnoulx (=Arnaud) de Granges notayre et 

bourgeois de Mouldon … procureur de Noble Guilliaume Espar (=Espaz) Seigneur de Villaris ? 

réé d’aultre part, Katherine as heir of Loys Mejoz en son vivant cytoyen de Lausanne, tiltre ayant 

par exchange faict entre … (no more text, no date). 

 

Noel Lhoste de Luscens (=Lucens) has received from Jaquema Coulyn sa belle mere au nom de 

Arbanna (=Urbaine) sa fillie femme de luydict Noel, 25 florins, in addition to other sums already 

received, which make 60 florins, dowry, assignal, 07 sep 1565. 

 

Fol. 197 

 

Jehan Jaulminiez et Pierre filz de feu Guilliaume Perrin tous deux bourgeois de Payerne, 

exchange, 13 jan 1566. 



Fol. 197v 

 

Daniel Brossie de Corcelles bourgeois de Payerne sells to Claude nourry de Henry Jhan de 

Corcelles, 13 jan 1566, with other provisions. 

 

Fol. 198 

 

Jacob Genacollaz bourgeois de Payerne sells to Daniel Pilliard bourgeois de Payerne, 14 jan 

1566. 

 

Fol. 198v 

 

« Sont extraitz tous les billietz de ce present Registre des laudz des pieces tant riere la Signieurie 

de Montagny. » 

 

END. 

 


